

JERSEY
AUSTRALIA
INCORPORATED

CONSTITUTION

Updated 14 November 2007

STATEMENT OF PURPOSES

- 1) The name of the proposed incorporated association is Jersey Australia Incorporated.
- 2) The purposes for which the proposed incorporated association is established are:-
 - a. To develop the genetic pool of Jersey cattle within Australia.
 - b. To expand the influence of the breed in Australia and in any overseas territory not serviced by a Jersey Association.
 - c. To collect, verify, and publish information relating to the commercial benefits of Jersey cattle.
 - d. To collect, verify and maintain a register of Jersey cattle to be held at the office of the Association.
 - e. To promote in any way not mentioned above the interests of breeders of Jersey cattle and members of the Association.
 - f. To purchase or lease any real property in the interests of the Association.
 - g. To accept or reject any gift or legacy of money or property whether subject to any special trust or not for any one or more of the objects of the Association.
 - h. To print and publish any newspapers, periodicals, books or leaflets that the Association may think desirable for the promotion of its objects.
 - i. To invest any moneys of the Association in such manner as may from time to time be determined
 - j. To do all such lawful things as are incidental to the attainment of the above objects.

INDEX

1. Name.....	4
2. Definitions.....	4
3. Register of Members.....	5
4. Annual Subscription.....	5
5. Membership.....	5
6. Membership Application.....	6
7. Notice to Members.....	7
8. Ceasing Membership.....	7
9. The Council.....	8
10. Elections of The Council.....	8
11. Secretary.....	10
12. Vacancies.....	10
13. Annual General Meeting.....	10
14. Special General Meetings.....	11
15. Special Business.....	12
16. Notice of General Meetings.....	12
17. Quorum at General Meetings.....	13
18. Presiding at General Meetings.....	13
19. Voting at General Meetings.....	14
20. Manner Determining Whether Resolutions are Carried.....	14
21. Adjournment of Meetings.....	15
22. Minutes of Meetings.....	15
23. Funds.....	15
24. Alteration of the Rules and Statement of Purposes.....	15
25. Seal.....	16
26. Custody and Inspection of Books and Records.....	16
27. Winding Up.....	16
28. Discipline, Suspension and Expulsion of Members.....	16
29. Disputes and Mediation.....	17
30. Breed Register.....	18
31. Classification.....	19
32. Recognition of Societies and Associations.....	19
33. Associated Rules Pertaining to the Set-Up and Operation of Jersey Australia Incorporated.....	20

1. NAME

The incorporated association is *Jersey Australia Incorporated* in these rules called "the Association".

2. DEFINITIONS

(1) In these Rules, unless the contrary intention appears –

"Act" means the Associations Incorporation Act 1981

"Book Of Rules" the association will publish a book of rules relating to this constitution

"council" are the delegates elected by the financial membership to manage the affairs of the association

"Delegate" means a person elected by the financial membership to the council

"financial year" means the period of 12 months (or such other period as the council resolves) commencing on the date of incorporation of the association or on the date of the expiration of the previous financial year (as the case may be)

"general meeting" means a general meeting of delegates of the association convened in accordance with these rules and includes the annual general meeting and special general meeting

"member" means a financial member of the association

"Register" means a listing of Jersey cattle that are recorded in the files of the Association

"Regulations" means regulations under the Act

"relevant documents" has the same meaning as in the Act

(2) In these Rules, a reference to the Secretary of an Association is a Reference:-

- a) if a person or body holds office under these Rules as Secretary of the Association - to that person or body; and
- b) in any other case, to the public officer of the Association.

3. REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Secretary shall maintain a register of members containing the name and address of each member; the date on which each member's name was entered in the register and the class of membership.

4. ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION

- 1) The annual subscription payable by full, associate, junior or family members shall be determined by the members in Annual General Meetings
- 2) Honorary Life Members shall not be liable to pay any Annual Subscription
- 3) The annual subscription shall be due and payable at a time determined by council

5. MEMBERSHIP

- 1) The Association shall comprise of the members of Jersey Australia at the date of incorporation of the Association and such other individuals who are admitted to membership of the Association from time to time in accordance with these rules.
- 2) The membership of the Association shall be divided into the following classes:
 - a. Full membership. A Full Member shall be any person who is a member of the Jersey Australia at the date of incorporation or who is subsequently nominated and approved for membership as provided in these Rules.
 - b. Associate membership shall be determined at the discretion of the council and subject to any terms deemed necessary. An associate member shall not be eligible to hold office in the Association or to vote at any general meeting of the Association, but shall have rights and privileges as granted by Jersey Australia council.
 - c. Junior Member - Any person under the age of 21 years who is nominated by a full member or honorary life member and approved for membership as provided in these rules is eligible to be a Junior Member of the Association. Junior Members shall, at the end of the financial year in which they attain the age of 21, cease to be Junior members. A Junior member may make application to become a full member of the Association in

accordance with the procedures prescribed in these rules. A junior member shall not be eligible to hold office in the Association or to vote at any general meeting.

- d. Honorary Life Members - The council may at any time and in its absolute discretion admit any person (whether a full member or not) to honorary life membership of the Association by reason of services which such person may have rendered to the Association or to the Jersey Cattle industry in Australia. An honorary life member shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of a full member and shall be subject to the obligations of a full member
- e. Family Members - Members of a family actively engaged in the breeding of Jersey Cattle within one enterprise, nominated and approved for membership as provided for in these Rules are eligible to be Family Members. A family member shall be eligible to hold office in the Association and shall be entitled to one vote at any general meeting.

6. MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION

- 1) Every nomination for membership of the Association shall be lodged with the Secretary and shall be made in writing in such form or forms as council may from time to time prescribe. Each such nomination shall include the full name and address of the member who makes the nomination and of the nominee and shall contain an undertaking by the nominee to be bound by these Rules if admitted to the membership of the Association.
- 2) As soon as practicable after the receipt of the nomination, the secretary shall refer the nomination to council.
- 3) Upon a nomination being referred to council, council shall as soon as practicable determine whether to approve or to reject the nomination.
- 4) Upon a nomination being approved by council, the secretary shall forthwith notify the nominee in writing accordingly and request payment within the period of 28 days after the receipt of the notification of the sum payable under these Rules as the first year's annual subscription.
- 5) Upon payment of the amount referred to above, the secretary shall enter the nominee's name in the register of members kept by the association and upon the name being so entered, the nominee shall become a member of the association. If such payment is not received within one month after the date of the notice, council may in its discretion cancel its approval of the nominee for the membership of the Association.

- 6) A right, privilege or obligation of a member by reason of their membership of the Association unless otherwise herein contained, is not capable of being transferred or transmitted to another person.

7. NOTICE TO MEMBERS

Any notice that is required to be given to a member(s), by or on behalf of the Association, under these Rules may be given by

- a) Delivering the notice to the member personally; or
- b) Sending it by prepaid post addressed to the member's address shown in the register of members; or
- c) facsimile transmission, if the member has requested that the notice be given to them in this manner; or
- d) electronic transmission, if the member has requested that the notice be given to it in this manner; or
- e) by any other means available to the Association at the time.

8. CEASING MEMBERSHIP

- 1)
 - a. If the annual subscription of a member shall remain unpaid for a period of three months after it becomes due then the member may, after notice of default having been sent by council, be debarred by resolution of the Council from all privileges of membership and their name removed by the Council from the register of financial membership. The Council in its discretion may reinstate the member and restore their name to the register on payment of all arrears.
 - b. Any member may at any time give to the secretary notice in writing of intention to retire from membership of the Association and shall thereupon cease to be a member.
 - c. If a member dies their membership will no longer remain active
 - d. A member shall cease to be a member of the Association if expelled from the Association pursuant to Rule 28(1)

Notwithstanding that any member shall in any way cease to be a member, such cessation of membership shall not relieve such member from any liability for any debts which may be owing by them to the Association at the date

thereof, and the Association shall not be required to refund the whole or any part of the monies paid by the member for their membership.

9. THE COUNCIL

- 1) The affairs of the Association shall be managed by the committee of management known as Jersey Australia Council “the Council”.
- 2) The council:
 - a. shall control and manage the business and affairs of the Association; and
 - b. may, subject to these Rules, the Act and the Regulations, exercise all such powers and functions as may be exercised by the Association other than those powers and functions that are required by these Rules to be exercised by general meetings of the members of the Association; and
 - c. subject to these Rules, the Act and the Regulations, has power to perform all such acts and things as appear to the committee to be essential for the proper management of the business and affairs of the Association; and
 - d. consist of not more than ten members together with the Secretary
- 3) The officers of the Council shall be
 - a. a President;
 - b. a senior Vice-President; and a Junior Vice-President
 - c. an honorary Treasurer and
 - d. a Secretary
- 4) The Council shall at its first meeting after the Annual General Meeting each year elect from its members a President, Senior Vice-President, a Junior Vice-President and a Treasurer.
- 5) Each officer of the Council shall hold office until the annual general meeting next after the date of his or her appointment.
- 6) In the event of a casual vacancy occurring on the Council the Council may appoint a member to fill the vacancy. The member appointed shall hold office, subject to these Rules, until the conclusion of the annual general meeting next following the date of the appointment.

- 7) A Quorum of the Council shall be six
- 8) Council shall determine all matters by simple majority of the Councillors present. Proxy voting shall not be permitted.
- 9) In the case of an equality of voting the Chairperson of the meeting is entitled to exercise a second or casting vote
- 10) The Chairperson of the meeting shall be the President or in his absence the Senior Vice President or Junior Vice President and in their absence such Chairperson as the Councillors present elect.

10. ELECTIONS OF THE COUNCIL

- 1) Year One and Year Two: The Council shall comprise of the 7 delegates who were members of Federal Council immediately before the incorporation of the Association together with three Councillors elected by the membership.
- 2) Year Three: Five new Councillors shall be elected by the membership. Retiring Councillors shall be eligible to stand for election. The elected delegates shall be elected for a period of two years.
- 3) Year Four: The five Councillors who did not retire at the previous election shall retire. A further five Councillors shall be elected by the membership. The retiring Councillors shall be eligible to stand for re-election. The Councillors shall be elected for a two year period.
- 4) Year Five and thereafter: At the conclusion of their two year term the Councillors shall retire and the membership shall elect five new Councillors for a further two year term. The retiring Councillors shall be entitled to stand at that election.
- 5) Only one person per family membership shall be entitled to be on the Council of the association at any one time
- 6) Junior and Associate members shall not be entitled to be on the council of the association
- 7) Nominations shall be made in writing signed by two members of the Association, being full, life or family members.
- 8) Nominations of candidates for election as members of council shall be delivered to the address of the association not less than 42 days before the date fixed for the holding of the annual meeting.
- 9) If insufficient nominations are received to fill all vacancies on the council or if the number of nominations received is equal to the number

of vacancies on the council, the candidates nominated shall be deemed elected.

10)

- a. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of vacancies to be filled the secretary shall at least 21 days before the date fixed for the annual general meeting send to all members of the Association by prepaid post a printed ballot paper in such form as is determined by the council from time to time.
- b. To be valid, every ballot paper returned must reach the secretary not later than two days prior to the annual general meeting.
- c. A returning officer shall be appointed at a meeting of the council prior to the date on which the ballots are despatched to members who is responsible for counting the returned ballot papers
- d. Any candidate for election may appoint a scrutineer to attend whilst the ballot is being counted.
- e. The result of the ballot shall be declared by the returning officer at the Annual General Meeting

11. SECRETARY

- 1) The Council, upon appointing the secretary, shall nominate a person to be the public officer of the Association. The secretary shall be paid a fee as agreed upon from time to time.
- 2) The secretary of the Association shall keep minutes of the resolutions and proceedings of each meeting together with a record of names of persons present at council meetings.
- 3) The secretary shall be a non-voting member of the council unless the secretary is a Councillor acting as Secretary in an honorary capacity.
- 4) The secretary should keep a book of rules and motions

12. VACANCIES

- 1) The office of Councillor becomes vacant if the Councillor
 - a. ceases to be a member of the Association; or
 - b. becomes bankrupt or insolvent; or

- c. resigns from office by notice in writing given to the Secretary.
- 2) Where a Councillor fails to attend two consecutive meetings of the Council without either apology being accepted or leave of absence being granted by the Council, the Council may, after notice in writing having been given to such Councillor and having granted them the right to be heard, remove them from office and declare their position on the Council vacant

13. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

- 1) The Association shall in each calendar year and at intervals of not more than 15 months convene an annual general meeting of its members.
- 2) The annual general meeting shall be held on such day as the council determines on a state rotational basis where practical.
- 3) The annual general meeting shall be specified as such in the notice convening it.
- 4) The ordinary business of the annual general meeting shall be:
 - a. To confirm the minutes of the last preceding annual general meeting
 - b. To receive from the Council reports of the transactions of the association during the preceding financial year
 - c. To receive and consider the audited financial statement submitted by the association in accordance with section 30(3) of the Act
 - d. To declare the elected Council for the forthcoming year
 - e. To determine the annual subscription
 - f. To appoint an auditor for the forthcoming year
- 5) The annual general meeting may transact special business of which notice is given in accordance with these rules or any business the president may allow.
- 6) 20 members personally present being members entitled under these Rules to vote at an annual general meeting shall be considered a quorum.

- 7) A 75% affirmative vote of members present will be required for a Constitutional change.

14. SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

- 1) In addition to the annual general meeting, any other general meeting may be held in the same year.
- 2) All general meetings other than the annual general meeting are special general meetings.
- 3) Council may, whenever it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting of the Association.
- 4) If, but for this sub-rule, more than 15 months would elapse between annual general meetings, Council must convene a special general meeting before the expiration of that period.
- 5) The Council must, on the request in writing of not less than 20 Members able to attend and vote at such meeting convene a special general meeting of the Association.
- 6) The request for a special general meeting must:-
 - a. state the objects of the meeting; and
 - b. be signed by the members requesting the meeting and
 - c. be sent to the address of the Secretary.
- 7) If Council does not cause a special general meeting to be held within one month after the date on which the request is sent to the address of the Secretary, the members making the request, or any of them, may convene a special general meeting to be held not later than 3 months after that date.
- 8) If a special general meeting is convened by members in accordance with rule 14(7), all reasonable expenses incurred in convening the special general meeting must be refunded by the Association to the persons incurring the expenses.

15. SPECIAL BUSINESS

All business that is conducted at a special general meeting and all business that is conducted at the annual general meeting, except for business conducted under the rules as ordinary business of the annual general meeting, is deemed to be special business.

16. NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

- 1)
 - a. The council shall, at least 60 days before the date fixed for holding each annual general meeting of the Association, notify the membership by publishing in the Jersey Australia Journal or by some other method available to the Association at the time, of the date fixed for holding the annual general meeting of the association
 - b. The Secretary of the Association, at least 28 days, or if a special resolution has been proposed at least 28 days, before the date fixed for holding a special general meeting of the Association, must cause to be sent to each member of the Association, a notice stating the place, and time of the meeting and the nature of the business to be conducted at the meeting.
- 2) Notice may be sent:-
 - a. by prepaid post to the address appearing in the register of members; or
 - b. if the member requests, by facsimile transmission or electronic transmission.
- 3) No business other than that set out in the notice convening the meeting may be conducted at that meeting subject to the Chairperson's discretion.
- 4) A member intending to bring any business before a meeting will notify in writing, or by electronic transmission, the Secretary of that business, who must include that business in the notice calling the next general meeting.

17. QUORUM AT GENERAL MEETINGS

- 1) No item of business may be conducted at a general meeting unless a quorum of members entitled under these Rules to vote is present at the time when the meeting is considering that item.
- 2) A quorum shall be 20 financial members at all meetings.
- 3) If, within half an hour after the appointment time for the commencement of a general meeting, a quorum is not present:-
 - a. in the case of a meeting convened upon the request of members - the meeting must be dissolved; and

- b. in any other case - the meeting shall stand adjourned to a date specified by the Chairperson.
- 4) If at the adjourned meeting the quorum is not present within half an hour after the time appointed for the commencement of the meeting, the members personally present (being not less than 6) shall be a quorum.

18. PRESIDING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

- 1) The President, or in the President's absence, a Vice-President, shall preside as Chairperson at each general meeting of the Association.
- 2) If the President and the Vice-Presidents are absent from a general meeting, or are unable to preside, the members present must elect one of their number to preside as Chairperson.

19. VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

- 1) Upon any question arising at a general meeting of the Association, a member has one vote only.
- 2) All votes must be given personally.
- 3) Proxy voting is not permitted.
- 4) All voting shall be determined by a simple majority other than where a special resolution is required pursuant to the Act.
- 5) In the case of an equality of voting on a question, the Chairperson of the meeting is entitled to exercise a second or casting vote.
- 6) If at a meeting a poll on any question is demanded by not less than 20 members, it must be taken at that meeting in such manner as the Chairperson may direct and the resolution of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of the meeting on that question.
- 7) A poll that is demanded on the election of a Chairperson or on a question of an adjournment must be taken immediately and a poll that is demanded on any other question must be taken at such time before the close of the meeting as the Chairperson may direct.
- 8) On any question arising at a general meeting of the Association all ordinary, honorary life, and family members are entitled to vote. Associate and Junior members are not entitled to vote.

20. MANNER DETERMINING WHETHER RESOLUTIONS ARE CARRIED

If a question arising at a general meeting of the Association is determined by a poll –

- a) a declaration by the Chairperson that a resolution has been –
 - i. carried; or
 - ii. carried unanimously; or
 - iii. carried by a particular majority; or
 - iv. lost;
- b) an entry to that effect in the minute book of the Association - is evidence of the fact, without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of, or against, that resolution.

21. ADJOURNMENT OF GENERAL MEETINGS

- 1) The person presiding may, with the consent of a majority of members present at the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and place to place.
- 2) Subject to the Chairperson's discretion, no business may be conducted at an adjourned meeting other than the unfinished business from the meeting that was adjourned.

22. MINUTES OF MEETINGS

The Secretary of the Association must keep minutes of the resolutions and proceedings of each general meeting, and each Council meeting, together with a record of the names of persons present at meetings.

23. FUNDS

- 1) The treasurer of the Association shall be responsible for –
 - a. the collection and receipt of all monies due to the Association and all payments authorised by the Association; and
 - b. keeping correct accounts and books showing the financial affairs of the Association with full details of all receipts and expenditure connected with the activities of the Association.

- 2) All cheques, drafts, bills of exchange, promissory notes and other negotiable instruments must be signed by two members of the Council or Council representatives.
- 3) The funds of the Association shall be derived from annual subscriptions, donations and such other sources as the Council determines. There is no entrance fee for membership of the Association.
- 4) The books referred to shall be available for inspection by Councillors

24. ALTERATION OF THE RULES AND STATEMENT OF PURPOSES

These Rules and the statement of purposes of the Association must not be altered except in accordance with the Act.

25. SEAL

- 1) The common seal of the Association must be kept in the custody of the Secretary.
- 2) The common seal must not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of the Council and the affixing of the common seal must be attested by the signatures either of two Councillors or, of one Councillor and of the public officer of the Association.

26. CUSTODY AND INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS

- 1) Except as otherwise provided in these Rules, the Secretary must keep in his or her custody or under his or her control all books, documents and securities of the Association.
- 2) All accounts, books, securities and any other relevant documents of the Association must be available for inspection free of charge by any member upon request on seven days notice.
- 3) A member may make a copy of any accounts, books, securities and any other relevant documents of the Association.

27. WINDING UP

In the event of the winding up or the cancellation of the incorporation of the Association, the assets of the Association must be disposed of in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

28. DISCIPLINE, SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION OF MEMBERS

- 1) Subject to these Rules, the Council may:
 - a. Expel a member from the Association
 - b. Suspend a member from membership of the Association for a specified period, or
 - c. Fine a member in accordance with the regulations if the Council is of the opinion that the member
 - i. Has refused or neglected to comply with the rules or
 - ii. Has been guilty of conduct unbecoming a member or prejudicial to the interests of the Association or the Association membership.
- 2) Where the Council intends to exercise any of its powers under Rule 28(1) it shall prior to doing so and if 75% of Councillors resolves to do so, set out the proposed resolution of the Council and the grounds upon which it is based. In this event the Secretary shall, as soon as possible cause to be served on the member a notice in writing:-
 - a. Setting out the proposed resolution of the Council and the grounds on which it is based;
 - b. Stating that the member or their representative may address the council at the meeting;
 - c. Stating the date, place and time of that meeting which shall be held not earlier than 14 and not later than 60 days after service of the proposed resolution notice;
 - d. Informing the member that they may do one or more of the following:-
 - i. Attend the meeting to give reason why they should not be
 1. Expelled
 2. Suspended
 3. Fined
 - ii. Give to the council before the date of that meeting a written statement seeking revocation of the resolution.
- 3) The Council
 - a. Shall give to the member an opportunity to be heard either personally or by a representative;

- b. Shall give due consideration to any written statement submitted, and
 - c. Shall by resolution determine whether to pass or not pass the resolution.
- 4) A resolution of the Council to expel, suspend or fine a member shall not take effect until a meeting held in accordance with the rules has concluded

29. DISPUTES AND MEDIATION

- 1) The grievance procedure set out in this rule applies to disputes under these Rules between
 - a. a member and another member; or
 - b. a member and the Association.
- 2) The parties to the dispute must meet and discuss the matter in dispute, and, if possible, resolve the dispute within 14 days after the dispute comes to the attention of all of the parties.
- 3) If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute at the meeting, or if a party fails to attend that meeting, then the parties must, within 10 days, hold a meeting in the presence of a mediator.
- 4) The mediator must be
 - a. a person chosen by agreement between the parties; or
 - b. in the absence of agreement –
 - i. in the case of a dispute between a member and another member, a person appointed by the committee of the Association; or
 - ii. in the case of a dispute between a member and the Association, a person who is a mediator appointed or employed by the Department of Justice.
- 5) A member of the Association can be a mediator.
- 6) The mediator cannot be a member who is a party to the dispute.
- 7) The parties to the dispute must, in good faith, attempt to settle the dispute by mediation.
- 8) The mediator, in conducting the mediation, must
 - a. give the parties to the mediation process every opportunity to be heard; and

- b. allow due consideration by all parties of any written statement submitted by any party; and
 - c. ensure that natural justice is accorded to the parties to the dispute throughout the mediation process.
- 9) The mediator must not determine the dispute.
- 10) If the mediation process does not result in the dispute being resolved, the parties may seek to resolve the dispute in accordance with the Act otherwise at law.

30. BREED REGISTER

- 1) Jersey Australia Incorporated shall be responsible for compiling a record of registered Australian Jersey cattle.
- 2) Jersey Australia Incorporated will publish "Book of Rules" which will include eligibility for registration, transfers, leases, ownerships and documentation procedures and any other information deemed necessary. This book will be updated as required.
- 3) Registration in the register shall be open to all breeders of Jersey cattle in accordance with the "Book of Rules".
- 4) Jersey Australia Incorporated will maintain and run its own register for the purpose of recording the registrations of Jersey cattle.

31. CLASSIFICATION

Council shall oversee a national classification scheme in accordance with guidelines contained in the "Book of Rules".

32. RECOGNITION OF SOCIETIES AND ASSOCIATIONS

The Association may recognise the register of any society of breeders of Jersey cattle that are full members of the World Jersey Cattle Bureau and any other societies or associations that meets their approval.

33. PUBLIC OFFICER

The first Public Officer of the Association shall be the person upon whose Application the Association was Incorporated. Where that position becomes vacant the Council shall within fourteen days after the vacancy arises appoint a person to fill the vacancy.

33. ASSOCIATED RULES PERTAINING TO THE SET UP AND OPERATION OF JERSEY AUSTRALIA INCORPORATED

1) ELECTION PROCESS

There are two recommended processes for electing delegates should the occasion arise. Both processes call for ballot papers naming every candidate.

- a) that voting members be asked to highlight the exact number of candidates to fill the vacancies.
- b) That voting members strike out the candidates they do not wish to vote for, leaving the exact number of candidates they wish to fill the vacancies.
- c) For the first two years, no more than four (4) councillors can reside in any one state

2) START UP FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

The new national organisation, Jersey Australia Incorporated, will call on all participating states to loan all surplus and invested cash assets to the new organisation, interest free, for a period of three years.

The new national body, Jersey Australia Incorporated, will invest all moneys loaned by the state branches for said period of three years and will use the interest earned to assist with start up and early operational expenses.

Jersey Australia Incorporated will undertake not to avail itself of any of the actual net cash asset for the period of three years.

This arrangement will be reviewed prior to three years following the commencement of an operational Jersey Australia Incorporated with the view of deciding whether the cash asset stays with Jersey Australia Incorporated, or returns to the states divided according to what was initially put in by each state.

3) STATE'S POSITION IN START UP FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

All states will be expected to contribute financially in the above manner to assist in the start up of Jersey Australia Incorporated. Any state refusing to contribute financially will be unable to hold a position within the old Federal Council block of delegate's positions.

It is expected that all states will show commitment to the new national body by supporting it financially.

4) NON CURRENT ASSETS

All states holding non current assets essential to the successful start up and ongoing responsibilities of the national organisation will be expected to hand over the said assets on day one of the start up of the new organisation. This includes all member information, stock register, computer hardware and software, databases, classification information, promotional items (both hardware and software), and any other items pertaining to member needs and requirements. In the event of the national organisation winding up, ownership of the assets will revert to the original owners.

5) JERSEY AUSTRALIA INCORPORATED COMMITMENTS

Jersey Australia Incorporated will commit to meeting state bodies needs and requirements wherever possible. Budgets will be set to enable state committees to meet their individual responsibilities, should they wish to remain doing so.

It will be the responsibility of the new national body to set guidelines and parameters for fund distribution as per the budget.

While it is up to the new national body to set management procedures in place it is expected the delegates of the new body will meet face to face every two months with a finance meeting in between. Travel and accommodation costs will be kept to a minimum and be fully accountable, not only for cash flow reasons but also to raise the confidence of the membership.